
FC1

2002 Cognex Annual Report

P R I C E : ONE SHARE OF COGNEX STO C K .C H E A P !

Parody not associated with MAD Magazine

®



Cognex Corporation designs, develops, manufactures, and markets 

machine vision systems, or computers that can "see."  

Cognex is the world's leader in the machine vision industry, having shipped more than

175,000 vision systems, representing over $1.3 billion in cumulative revenue, since the

company's founding in 1981.  Cognex's Modular Vision Systems Division, headquar-

tered in Natick, Massachusetts, specializes in machine vision systems which are used

for automating the manufacture of a wide range of discrete items and for assuring

their quality.  Cognex's Surface Inspection Systems Division, headquartered in

Alameda, California, specializes in machine vision systems which are used for inspect-

ing the surfaces of products manufactured in a continuous fashion, such as metals,

paper, plastics, and nonwovens.  In addition to its corporate headquarters in Natick,

Massachusetts, Cognex also has regional offices located throughout North America,

Japan, Europe, and Southeast Asia.  Visit Cognex on-line at http://www.cognex.com. 
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I’m MAD! 2001 was a bad year for Cognex’s revenue, and 2002 was even worse! As C o g n e x ’ s

l a rgest share h o l d e r, I’m M A D about the economy’s effect on Cognex as much as you a re … m a y b e

even more! I’m M A D that I lost so much sleep worrying about the slowdown in capital spend-

ing, about the slump in the semiconductor industry, and the resulting effect of both of these on

Cognex’s bookings! And, I’m especially M A D that I had to lay off 127 good Cognoids as a re s u l t

of this downturn, some of whom had been with Cognex for more than 10 years.

Mad\’måd\ a d j . [Middle English m a d d, Old English g e mǣd,
past participle of g e mǣd a n, to madden, from g e m a d]
Definition #1:  Angry; resentful.  Usage: “I’m MAD about
the negative effect that the worldwide economic slow-
down has had on Cognex’s financial results in 2002.”  

What me worry dept.

Cognex designs, develops and manufactures machine vision systems…computers that can “see”…which are used by companies to automate a

variety of manufacturing processes that re q u i re vision. For example, Cognex vision systems inspect products to ensure they have been manufac-

t u red corre c t l y; they guide robots to perform diverse tasks ranging from packaging chocolates to welding automobiles; and they read codes and

serial numbers on items moving through the manufacturing pro c e s s … f rom aspirin bottles to semiconductor chips…in order to identify them and

collect information about how and where they were manufactured. Wherever human vision is used in factories, we hope that someday Cognex

machine vision will be there doing the job faster, more reliably and at a lower cost.

Cognex sells its vision products to a wide variety of companies…from companies that make cookies for your kids to eat, to companies that make

steel for the hood of your car, to companies that make chips and displays for your computer and cell phone. 

We have two types of customers: OEMs and End Users. OEMs (Original Equipment Manufacturers) purchase Cognex vision systems and integrate

them into very sophisticated, automated production equipment that they manufacture and then sell to other companies…principally those that

either make computer chips or that make printed circuit boards containing computer chips. End Users are the companies that manufacture the

p roducts that you buy, or components of the products that you buy…everything from pens to the disc brake pads on your car. These customers

p u rchase our vision systems directly from us and use them to automate the manufacturing lines on their own factory floors. 

The worldwide economic slowdown last year caused companies in many different industries to spend less on production equipment. As a re s u l t ,

both our OEM business and our End User business suffered. 

I’m MAD that the slowdown in the semiconductor and electronics industries reduced demand for Cognex vision during 2002.

Last year was a very tough year for our OEM customers who serve the semiconductor and electronics industries…which, in the past, have been

v e ry important markets for Cognex. 

These semiconductor and electronics OEMs integrate Cognex machine vision into capital equipment used to make semiconductor chips. Machine

vision is used widely in the manufacture of semiconductor chips, and sales to these OEMs have accounted for as much as 80% of our annual re v-

enue in past years. However, the industry is cyclical, with periods of investment followed by temporary slumps in demand.

Two years ago, a bubble in demand from these semiconductor and electronics OEMs drove our total 2000 annual revenue up to $251 million. At

the end of 2000, that bubble started to deflate, and throughout 2001 demand for machine vision from semiconductor and electronics capital equip-

ment makers dropped off rapidly. As a result of this unprecedented and sudden slowdown in business, Cognex re c o rded a quarterly loss in the fourth

quarter of 2001… the company’s first quarterly loss, excluding unusual items, in over 14 years. In each of the prior 58 quarters we had pro f i t s ,

which, in most cases, exceeded 20% of our revenue. Needless to say, I was very M A D about slipping into red ink…even if only for three quarters.  

Fortunately for Cognex, our strong balance sheet ($276 million in cash and investments, with no debt) ensured that we would have the financial

s t rength to survive this economic downturn. The challenge for us during 2002 was to continually manage our expenses in view of the constant-

ly shifting levels of customer demand. 

_
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I’m MAD that Cognex re c o rded its first annual loss (excluding unusual items) in 16 years. 

Cognex lost money for the first two quarters of 2002 as we struggled to reduce our expenses to compensate for ever-shrinking levels of re v e n u e .

By the third quarter of 2002, Cognex had successfully aligned its expenses to the lower level of business. These actions, together with the sequen-

tial quarterly revenue growth in 2002, enabled us to return to profitability on the bottom line during the third quarter, and in the fourth quarter

we regained profitability on the operating profit line as well. 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y, our losses in the first half of 2002 resulted in a net loss for the year. In 2002, Cognex reported $114 million of revenue—a decline

of 19% from the $141 million reported in 2001—and a net loss of $6 million for the year...Cognex’s first annual loss in 16 years, excluding unusu-

al items. Sales to OEM customers totaled only $37.4 million. This was a decline of 39% from the $61.4 million re c o rded in 2001, which was also

a down year. 

Revenue from our End User customers totaled $76.7 million, a decrease of 3% from 2001’s revenue of $79.3 million. This slight decrease is due

primarily to a decline in spending from End User customers in the electronics market, such as manufacturers of cell phones. Cognex’s overall per-

formance in the End User area was helped by the continuing strong performance of our In-Sight™ family of vision sensors and our SmartVi e w®

surface inspection vision systems. Both of these products, which were introduced in 2000, continued to make gains in the marketplace in 2002. 

Management’s philosophy at Cognex has always been one of fiscal conservatism. While other CEOs were still seeing “pie in the sky” at the end

of 2000, I was warning that a slowdown was coming. In fact, at the time, many people were M A D at me for suggesting that the party was over! 

This conservatism has helped Cognex avoid greater losses, and has contributed to our ability to quickly return to profitability after only three quar-

ters of losses…a mercifully short trip into the red. 

I’m MAD that investment losses negatively impacted our financial results in 2002.

In 2002 Cognex reported investment losses of $8 million. A few years ago, Cognex invested a portion of its cash in equity securities and in a ven-

t u re capital limited partnership. These investments were primarily in the area of technology. As the economy slowed, the value of these invest-

ments dropped below our cost basis, and it became clear that it might take a long time, if ever, for them to fully re c o v e r. Based on that line of

thinking, we decided to sell those equity investments at a loss and reinvest the funds in interest-bearing, low-risk securities. As a result, we re c-

ognized a realized loss of $6.2 million on the equity investments, and an unrealized loss, for book purposes, of $1.8 million on the venture cap-

ital investment. I want to point out that as I write this letter to you in early March of 2003, more than 95% of Cognex’s investments are now in

high-grade municipal bonds.

On the positive side, Cognex re c o rded a benefit from the sale of re s e rved inventory during the last three quarters of 2002. In Q4 of 2001 we re c o rd-

ed a charge of $16 million for inventory that we did not expect to sell, because we anticipated that customers would transition to next-genera-

tion equipment during the extended downturn. Instead, our customers continued to sell some of their older products throughout 2002 and, as a

result, they purchased Cognex vision systems from inventory that had been re s e rved. And, Cognex was able to realize a $2.7 million benefit (pre -

tax) from the sale of this inventory. 

Fi n a l l y, during 2002 we also took advantage of our strong cash position and the softness in the stock market to re p u rchase $26 million of Cognex

stock on the open market at an average purchase price of $14.94 per share. 

And, finally….I’m re a l l y, really MAD at the unscrupulous individuals who gave business a bad name in 2002. 

These crooks (oh, excuse me…”alleged” crooks) have betrayed their shareholders, their employees, their customers, their vendors and their neigh-

bors. They have betrayed the public’s trust and have given business and business executives a bad name. They should be penalized severely for

the damage that they have done…their illicit gains should be confiscated, they should be fined, and they should be put in jail!

Because of their re p rehensible and illegal actions, many new laws have been passed and new regulations issued. These laws and re g u l a t i o n s

will not stop dishonest people from stealing money, but they definitely will increase the amount of money that honest corporations have to spend

e v e ry year on lawyers and accountants to produce paperwork verifying that we are adhering to rules that the vast majority of us were already fol-

lowing. As a result, these new laws and regulations will definitely penalize ethical, hard-working businesses like Cognex, and they will penalize

e v e ry customer and shareholder of those businesses as well. I’m re a l l y, really M A D about the fact that I’m getting punished for their crimes, and

because you are also indirectly sharing in the punishment, you should be hopping M A D, too!

You can’t legislate honesty. These thieves didn’t care about the laws and regulations that were already on the books, and they won’t care about

the new laws and regulations either. Let me give you a simple example…it’s against the law to rob banks, right? Well, criminals use guns to carry

out bank robberies. So, should we pass another law making it illegal to carry a gun into a bank? And, when you go to apply for a gun license,

should you have to certify in writing that you won’t use a gun to rob banks? Maybe you should swear to that…under penalties of perjury … e a c h

and every quarter…as I now have to do for Cognex’s financial statements. Would that reduce the number of bank robberies?  Get real! Get M A D!

Criminals don’t care about laws; what they care about is not getting caught, convicted or punished. Even the gre e d i e s t CEO wouldn’t purchase a pin

cushion or a shower curtain with the company’s money if he thought that there was a chance it might lead to spending a year or more in the slamm e r.
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Rather than increasing the heavy burden that already exists in the U.S. on corporate compliance, we should increase the penalties for breaking the

existing laws and regulations, and we should ensure that there is sufficient funding at the federal level to enforce those existing laws and regulations. 

Mad\’måd\ a d j . [Middle English m a d d, Old English g e mǣd, past participle of g e mǣd a n, 
to madden, from g e m a d] Definition #2: Feeling or showing strong liking or enthusiasm. 
Usage: “Despite problems caused by the poor economy in 2002, Cognoids continue to be MAD 
about machine vision, MAD about Cognex, and MAD about our prospects for the future . ”

Despite both the current economic slowdown and the bursting of the Internet bubble…which have had a negative effect on revenues, profits and

stock prices at virtually every high-tech company…all of us at Cognex remain confident about the tremendous opportunity for machine vision

and for Cognex in the years ahead. So, in 2002, we continued to work like M A D to pre s e rve our competitive edge. Here are some great things at

Cognex that I continue to be M A D a b o u t .

I’m MAD about being the leading supplier of machine vision to OEM customers. 

In 2002 we had very low demand for our machine vision systems from the manufacturers of semiconductor fabrication tools (capital equipment

that is used to manufacture computer chips) and from the manufacturers of electronic assembly equipment (capital equipment that is used to

m a n u f a c t u re printed circuit boards). Nevertheless, we continued to work hard throughout the year to ensure that Cognex remained the vision

supplier of choice for our existing OEM customers…and that we earned that position with new OEM customers as well.

OEM customers typically use down cycles to design new models, and during 2002 Cognex’s OEM sales force and engineering team worked hard

to ensure that we are part of these new machine designs. And, our hard work paid off…in 2002 we signed 107 new OEM customers. 

I’m MAD about the success of our products designed for End Users.

The OEM business discussed above has always had its ups and downs, but the current slump is both deeper and more prolonged than at any prior

time. It’s a very good thing that Cognex had the foresight to begin developing products for End Users several years ago. Unlike our OEM cus-

tomers, who purchase Cognex vision systems and integrate them into the automation machines that they manufacture and then sell to their cus-

tomers for the production of chips or electronic devices, End Users are customers that purchase machine vision systems for a wide variety of appli-

cations in their own manufacturing plants. 

End Users install Cognex vision systems directly on their factory floors to control the manufacture of their products and to ensure quality in a

wide variety of applications, such as the automated identification of wheels being installed on cars and trucks, the automated inspection and pack-

aging of pharmaceuticals and the automated manufacturing of consumer products ranging from disposable razors to golf balls. We are simply

M A D about the growth of our End User business; in 2002 Cognex signed a re c o rd 960 new End User customers, and this has significantly re d u c e d

our dependence on the health (or lack of health) of the worldwide semiconductor and electronics markets. Our success with End Users has been

primarily driven by two products, In-Sight and SmartVi e w, which are described in detail below.

I n - S i g h t

In-Sight is our family of easy- t o-use, powerful, and low-cost vision sensors. Designed by our engineering teams in Portland, Milwaukee and Epsom,

England, and led by John McGarry, a Cognex Senior Vice President, In-Sight has been the primary growth driver of Cognex’s End User business.

In 2002 revenue from our In-Sight family of sensors totaled $29.2 million…this is an increase of 38% over 2001. And we’re particularly M A D

about the good news that more than two- t h i rds of these In-Sight orders came from customers outside of Cognex’s traditional customer base (i.e.,

customers serving the semiconductor and electronics markets). 

Our sales force has been happy to find that many large corporations…such as auto manufacturers…have been so satisfied with their initial In-

Sight purchases, that they often find additional and different applications in their plants that can benefit from In-Sight’s power and ease of inte-

gration. For example, in the automotive industry, In-Sight is now used in many stages of automobile manufacturing such as inspecting welded

nuts, gaskets, cables, fuses and HVAC units…ensuring the proper assembly of car stereos, brakes, airbags, pistons, transmissions, sideview mir-

rors and door components…and guiding robots to locate engine parts during manufacturing and assembly. Since introducing In-Sight in 2000,

Cognex’s revenue from automotive customers has increased substantially by 72%. We credit this success to a great product that was designed

to solve a wide variety of problems, and to our great marketing and sales teams that know how to target appropriate customers and applica-

tions…and then to get the order!  

S m a r t Vi e w

S m a r t View is a vision system designed and manufactured by Cognex’s Surface Inspection Systems Division (SISD), which is led by Markku

J a a s kelainen, a Cognex Senior Vice President. SISD manufactures and sells vision systems that detect and classify defects on the surfaces of mate-

rials manufactured in a continuous process (products such as automotive steel, printing-grade coated paper and nonwovens, which are materials

used in items such as surgical gowns and face masks). In 2002 SISD had re c o rd bookings, showing an increase of 16% over the prior year. These

gains were primarily due to the division’s success in taking market share. And, by the way, we’re simply M A D about the fact that we won those

_



accounts…not by lowering our prices…but by selling the benefits of Cognex technology over that of our competitors.

The two largest markets for web inspection systems are metals and paper. In 2002 Cognex became the worldwide market leader in metals, with

over 50% market share. And, we also established ourselves as the leading supplier of web inspection systems for paper in North America with

over 50% market share. We made significant gains in paper market share in Europe and Japan also. Curre n t l y, eight of the world’s top ten paper

m a n u f a c t u rers have selected and installed Cognex SmartView systems, and two of those companies have entered into corporate agreements with

Cognex, making us their vision vendor of choice.

I’m MAD about our future pro s p e c t s !

While the worldwide economic slowdown has held capital spending way below the levels we would like, we did a good job in 2002 of getting our

house in order to weather this storm. And, in 2003 we have charted a course for gro w t h !

The OEM business has been very soft for over two years. Our expectation going forw a rd is that…barring a new “killer application” to drive stro n g

consumption of semiconductor chips…our OEM revenue in the future is not likely to exceed...and may never even reach…our past peak re v e n u e s

f rom those customers. 

With that in mind, we expect our growth to be increasingly driven by our End User businesses, both in our Modular Vision Systems Division

(MVSD), and our Surface Inspection Systems Division (SISD). There f o re, we are dedicating more and more of our re s o u rces to developing those

businesses through both ongoing product development and through acquisitions. 

I’m MAD about my day job!

In mid-2001, Jim Hoffmaster joined Cognex as our Chief Operating Officer. He quickly learned our business (which, by the way, is not easy to do

because of the complexity of our technology and the different businesses that our customers are in), and by the start of 2002, he was pre p a re d

to “take the wheel” and drive Cognex forw a rd on a quarter- t o-quarter basis. This freed me up to spend more time on growth opportunities. I’m

now focusing on two possible growth drivers: acquisitions and markets for machine vision outside of industrial applications. 

With re g a rd to acquisitions, our strategy has been to pursue companies, or divisions of companies, whose primary focus is machine vision, and

that can quickly add to our technology, customer base, or sales and distribution channels. And, although our logo says “Vision for Industry,” we

a re also starting to see some very interesting applications for machine vision that are not in the industrial arena. And, when I say “intere s t i n g , “

I’m not speaking as Dr. Shillman, the former pro f e s s o r; I’m speaking as Dr. Bob, the businessman. And, in the businessman’s dictionary, “inter-

esting” is defined as “a potentially large market with high pro f i t a b i l i t y.” I hope to report to you on our entry into “Vision for non-Industry” in next

y e a r’s annual re p o r t .

We ’ re MAD about Cognex !

One final word about why we are all M A D about Cognex. Cognex’s philosophy is to take our work seriously but not to take ourselves seriously.

We have created a culture where we work hard and we play hard. Unfortunately, in these tough times we’ve been forced to scale back some of

the perks that our employees have traditionally enjoyed. But, we have not eliminated them…we still go to the movies together, we still play Fr i s b e e

at lunch (rain or shine), and we still have monthly beer and pizza socials. We ’ re still having fun! And, as soon as a re c o v e ry is in sight, we’ll be

back to celebrating our wins with champagne toasts rather than with beer!

Best of all, Cognoids around the globe remain committed to our business, and through the application of one of our ten corporate

values, p e r s e v e r a n c e, we will return Cognex to high levels of revenue and pro f i t a b i l i t y. My two co-founders, Bill Silver and

Marilyn Matz, and I have dedicated the greater part of our professional lives to building this business, and we remain ded-

icated to ensuring its future success. 

Talk to you later!

D r. Robert J. Shillman

M A Dcap President, CEO and Chairman

Oh, I almost forgot, there is one more important definition of “mad”:

Mad\’måd\ a d j . [Middle English m a d d, Old English g e mǣd, 
past participle of g e mǣd a n, to madden, from g e m a d] 
Definition #3: A popular American humor magazine. 
Usage: “Doctor Bob, aren’t you concerned that MAD 
might have one of its high-priced MADison Avenue 
lawyers file a suit against Cognex for this annual re p o r t ? ”

What, me worry? 
This is a paro d y, 
you moro n !
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Ill Legal

I’M MAD! As a product liability

lawyer, I make my living by suing man-

ufacturers of defective products…but,

Cognex’s machine vision systems are

killing my practice! More and more

companies are using Cognex systems

to ensure product quality, and now

there are fewer defective products

out there to harm or inconvenience

people! It’s enough to make 

me lose my lunch!!

Chucky Cheatem–Partner,

Dewey, Cheatem & Howe

Chucky — Don’t lose your lunch

on our account…although, come

to think of it, your lunch may be

packaged correctly on our

account. Cognex vision inspects

packaged foods and verifies that

the right product is in the right

carton. — Ed.

I’M MAD! Hey, Cognex, didn’t you

get the memo? Your stock was sup-

posed to crater along with everyone

else’s in 2002. I sold short…and then

you have the nerve to hold up in the

midst of this downturn? I lost a bun-

dle, and it’s your fault!

Ken I. Havaloan – Dearborn, MI 

Dear Ken — It’s too cold outside

for SHORTS in Michigan! Maybe

you didn’t get the memo about

Cognex’s strong balance sheet, no

debt, and market leadership. 

For our money, we would never

bet against Cognex...and while

some people may short the stock,

we would advise against selling

Cognex short on technology or on

business savvy. — Ed.

I’M MAD! My company supplies

pulpwood to paper manufacturers. My

problem is that Cognex’s SmartView

surface inspection system is so darn

effective, manufacturers aren’t making

bad product anymore…and that means

they need less material from me! 

John E. Appleseed – President, 

Trees ‘R’ Us, Inc. 

Think of it this way, John: we’re

helping to save the forests. In fact,

our SmartView surface inspection

system has been credited with

accelerating the return of the

endangered three-toed caterpillar

found only in the old-growth

forests of Finland. 

As far as reducing defective prod-

uct during manufacturing, we’ve

got the “papers” to prove it! And

SmartView does the same for

metals, plastics, and any other

material made in a continuous

web. — Ed. 

I’M MAD! Here at the U.S. Treasury,

we count on highly profitable compa-

nies like Cognex to pay a bundle in

taxes so we can finance new bridges,

schools and other projects. When is

Cognex going to return to being a

highly profitable company so that we

can let Congress know it’s time to

start spending again? 

Pei Sum Cash – Revenue Analyst, 

U.S. Treasury 

Dear Mr. Cash — We’d like to

return to being highly profitable,

too, so that we can open new

sales offices, develop even more

new products, and fund other ini-

tiatives to continue growing our

business.

However, until business turns

around we won’t be paying more

taxes…maybe you could help by

purchasing some Cognex vision

systems to inspect U.S. currency

as it is being printed? 

That would boost our profits, and

earn you a bigger tax payout from

Cognex…a double win! — Ed. 

I’M MAD! As head of the French

Champagne Makers Association, we

have noticed a dramatic downturn in

our U.S. champagne sales over the

last year. Our analysts have traced this

to the fact that Cognex has been

holding fewer company celebrations

during the economic downturn. I am

currently in the process of forecasting

our 2003 sales…can you let me know

when you expect your business to

pick up so ours will too?

Thanks,

Hope U. Sipmore – President, 

French Champagne Makers Association

Dear Ms. Sipmore — Now that

you mention it, I’m feeling a little

parched! 

There’s nothing I would like 

better than to buy a whole vat of

champagne to celebrate a winning

year at Cognex. I can’t make any

predictions about the timing of 

an economic recovery…but when

it does come, you can be sure

Cognex will once again be cele-

brating in style. — Ed.

Stock Answer

Pulp Non-Fiction

A Taxing Situation

Thirsting For Recovery

Letters From Our Readers
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Have a nice trip Dept.

One Day on the Assembly Line
What a fine day for 
a quality inspection!

Look at that, another defect
caught by Cognex vision.
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You Know You Really Need
Machine Vision When...

Blurred Vision DepT.

You know you really need machine vision when... You know you really need machine vision when...

...your bottle of hand cream actually

contains Rogaine™.
...your new sports car was delivered with

an unusual option...tractor tires.

...your grocer won’t take your money because the

wrong image is printed on your twenty dollar bill.

...your animal crackers look like genetic

engineering has gone too far.

You know you really need machine vision when... You know you really need machine vision when...
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Manufacturers who use Cognex machine vision on their production lines get to rest

easy at night. However, not all manufacturers have made the leap to this

technology. How do you know if a manufacturer has not had the foresight to

install Cognex vision on their production lines?  That's easy...

You know you really need machine vision when... You know you really need machine vision when...

...the heels on your  new $200 basketball sneakers

don’t improve your game.

...even your adult patients cry when they

get their flu shots.

...there are unusual defects in

your roll of printing paper.

...the expiration date on your pack of

birth control pills was misprinted.

You know you really need machine vision when... You know you really need machine vision when...
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HOW THE
ECONOMIC SLOWDOWN

IS AFFECTING 
COGNEX CULTURE

Slow down the Hoedown DepT.

Entertainment at Cognex's annual
summer event for employees and their

families has been scaled down.

Cognex is known for its "work hard, play hard" company culture. Employees at Cognex work hard for 

customers, and to help ensure that employees enjoy their work environment, Cognex offers perks such as a 

company game room, fitness room, and creative celebrations for employees and their families.  However the 

sluggish economy has meant cutting back on some of these employee perks.  So let's see how Cognoids have

kept the fun going in spite of leaner budgets...
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Instead of a holiday party at a fancy downtown
hotel, Cognoids now receive cab fare and a

discount coupon for McDonald’s.

Cognex introduced a low-cost
alternative to dental insurance.

Dr. Bob's costume at the 
annual Halloween party is less

elaborate than usual.
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Cloak and Camera DepT.



Cognex Corporation: Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report, as well as oral statements made by the Company from time to time, constitute forward-looking 

statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act 

of 1934, as amended. Readers can identify these forward-looking statements by the Company’s use of the words “expects,” “anticipates,”

“estimates,” “believes,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “will,” “may,” “shall,” and similar words and other statements of a similar sense. These

statements are based upon the Company’s current expectations and estimates as to prospective events and circumstances, which may or may

not be in the Company’s control and as to which there can be no firm assurances given. These forward-looking statements, like any other 

forward-looking statements, involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those

projected or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include: (1) the effects of the general economic slow-

down, including the worldwide slowdown in capital spending; (2) the cyclicality of the semiconductor and electronics industries; (3) the

Company’s continued ability to achieve significant international revenue; (4) the loss of, or a significant curtailment of purchases by, any one or

more principal customers; (5) the reliance upon certain sole source suppliers to manufacture or deliver critical components for the Company’s

products; (6) the inability to design and manufacture high-quality products; (7) the inability to attract or retain skilled employees; (8) the inabili-

ty to forecast customer demand accurately; (9) the technological obsolescence of current products and the inability to develop new products;

(10) the inability to protect the Company’s proprietary technology and intellectual property; (11) the Company’s involvement in time-consum-

ing and costly litigation; (12) the inability to respond to competitive technology and pricing pressures; and (13) the inability to achieve expected

results from acquisitions. The foregoing list should not be construed as exhaustive and the Company encourages readers to refer to the dis-

cussion of risk factors included in Part I – Item 1 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company cautions readers not to place undue

reliance upon any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. The Company disclaims any obligation to subse-

quently revise forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of

anticipated or unanticipated events.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon its consolidated financial statements,

which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial

statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expens-

es, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates, including those related 

to investments, accounts receivable, inventories, income taxes, derivative instruments, long-lived assets, warranty obligations, litigation, and

other contingencies. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different assumptions or circumstances, resulting in charges

that could be material in future reporting periods. The Company believes the following critical accounting policies require the use of significant

estimates and judgments in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Investments

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s cash equivalent and investment balances totaled $217,561,000, of which $209,634,000 consisted 

of municipal obligations. The remaining balance represented a limited partnership interest in Venrock Associates III, L.P., a venture capital 

fund with an investment focus on Information Technology and Health Care and Life Sciences. The Company’s limited partnership interest is

accounted for using the cost method because the Company’s investment is less than 5% of the partnership and the Company has no influence

over the partnership’s operating and financial policies. The partnership’s performance is monitored by the Company to determine if the 

carrying value of the investment has been impaired.

The Company has committed to a total investment in the limited partnership of up to $25,000,000, of which $10,375,000 had been contributed

as of December 31, 2002. The commitment to contribute capital expires on January 1, 2005 and the Company does not have the right to with-

draw from the partnership prior to December 31, 2010.
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During 2002, the Company reduced the carrying value of its investment in the limited partnership by $680,000, representing losses on the

fund’s investments and fund expenses that were not offset by investment gains. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2002, based upon the

estimated fair value of this investment, the Company determined that it may be unable to recover its full carrying value. As a result, the

Company recorded a charge of $1,768,000, representing an other-than-temporary impairment in the carrying value of this investment. At

December 31, 2002, the carrying value of this investment had been reduced to $7,927,000.

The Company will continue to monitor the partnership’s performance. The majority of the partnership’s portfolio consists of investments in

early stage, private companies characterized by a high degree of risk, volatility, and illiquidity. The task of identifying attractive venture capital

investments and valuing them on an ongoing basis is difficult and involves many uncertainties. Valuations are performed by the General Partner

and the Company relies primarily on this information to make its determination as to whether an other-than-temporary impairment in its

interest in the partnership has occurred. Given the nature of the partnership’s portfolio and the difficulty inherent in valuing these investments,

there is a great deal of uncertainty surrounding the future value of the Company’s interest in the partnership and future impairment charges

may be required.

Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains reserves against its accounts receivable for potential credit losses. Ongoing credit evaluations of customers are performed

and the Company has historically not experienced significant losses related to the collection of its accounts receivable. Allowances for doubtful

accounts are estimated by management taking into account the length of time receivables have been outstanding, specific accounts determined to be

at risk for collection, the risks associated with selling to smaller end-user customers, the economic conditions of the primary regions and industries

sold to, as well as general economic conditions. An adverse change in any of these factors may result in the need for additional bad debt provisions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company estimates excess and obsolescence exposures based upon assumptions

about future demand, product transitions, and market conditions and records reserves to reduce inventories to their estimated net realizable

value. The failure to accurately forecast demand, in terms of both volume and configuration, and adjust material requirement plans in a timely

manner may lead to additional excess and obsolete inventory and future charges. 

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing consolidated financial statements, the Company is required to estimate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions

in which it operates. This process involves estimating the current tax liability, as well as assessing temporary differences arising from the different

treatment of items for financial statement and tax purposes. 

At December 31, 2002, the Company had net deferred tax assets of $26,577,000, primarily resulting from temporary differences between the finan-

cial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The Company has evaluated the realizability of these deferred tax assets and has determined that

it is more likely than not that these assets will be realized. In reaching this conclusion, the Company has evaluated certain relevant criteria including

the Company’s historical profitability, current projections of future profitability, and the lives of tax credits, net operating and capital losses, and other

carryforwards, certain of which have indefinite lives. Should the Company fail to generate sufficient pre-tax profits in future periods, the Company

may be required to record material adjustments to these deferred tax assets, resulting in a charge to income in the period of determination.

Significant judgment is required in determining worldwide income tax expense based upon tax laws in the various jurisdictions in which the

Company operates. The Company is subject to audits by various tax authorities, which may result in future charges or credits.
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Derivative Instruments

In certain instances, the Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts are

used to reduce the Company’s risk associated with exchange rate movements, as the gains or losses on these contracts are intended to offset

the exchange rate losses or gains on the underlying exposures. The Company does not engage in foreign currency speculation. As the terms of

the forward exchange contract and underlying exposure are matched generally at inception, hedging effectiveness is calculated by comparing

the change in fair value of the contract to the change in fair value of the underlying exposure. Ineffectiveness would be recognized immediately

in current operations and may have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company has long-lived assets including property, plant, and equipment, as well as acquired goodwill and other intangible assets. These

assets are susceptible to shortened estimated useful lives and changes in their fair values due to changes in their use, market or economic

changes, or other events or circumstances. In addition, the fair value of goodwill is susceptible to changes in the fair value of the reporting

units in which the goodwill resides, which are also reportable segments. The Company evaluates the potential impairment of its long-lived

assets annually, as required, or whenever events or circumstances indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. If events or circum-

stances occur which would require a significant reduction in the estimated useful lives of these assets or a significant decrease in fair value

below their carrying values, an adjustment to the lives or carrying values would result in a charge to income in the period of determination.

Warranty Obligations

The Company records the estimated cost of fulfilling product warranties at the time of sale based upon historical costs to fulfill warranty 

obligations. While the Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating 

the quality of its component suppliers and third-party contract manufacturers, the Company’s warranty obligation is affected by product failure

rates, material usage, and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. An adverse change in any of these factors may result 

in the need for additional warranty provisions.

Contingencies

Estimated losses from contingencies are accrued by management based upon the likelihood of a loss and the ability to reasonably estimate 

the amount of the loss. Estimating potential losses, or even a range of losses, is difficult and involves a great deal of judgment. The Company

relies primarily on assessments made by its internal and external legal counsel to make its determination as to whether a loss contingency 

arising from litigation should be recorded or disclosed. Should the resolution of a contingency result in a loss that the Company did not accrue

because management did not believe that the loss was probable or capable of being reasonably estimated, then this loss would result in a

charge to income in the period the contingency was resolved.

Summary

The Company’s results in 2002 continued to be impacted by a slowdown in capital spending by manufacturers worldwide, resulting in a 19%

decrease in revenue from 2001. Sales to original equipment manufacturer (OEM) customers, who incorporate Cognex machine vision systems

into the capital equipment they manufacture and sell to their customers, primarily in the semiconductor and electronics industries, decreased

39% from 2001. Likewise, sales to end-user customers, who purchase Cognex machine vision systems and install them directly on their pro-

duction lines, decreased 3% from the prior year.

The Company continued to reduce its cost structure during 2002 to more closely align expenses to the lower level of customer demand.

These actions, together with the sequential quarterly revenue growth in 2002, resulted in the Company reporting an operating profit in the

fourth quarter. The Company’s financial position remained strong at December 31, 2002, with $386 million in total assets, $355 million in

stockholders’ equity, and $276 million in cash, cash equivalents, and investments.
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The following table sets forth certain consolidated financial data as a percentage of revenue:

Year ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenue 100% 100% 100%

Cost of revenue 35 44 25

Gross margin 65 56 75

Research, development, and engineering expenses 22 21 13

Selling, general, and administrative expenses 51 44 25

Amortization of goodwill – 2 1

Charge for intangible asset impairment – 8 –

Operating income (loss) (8) (19) 36

Nonoperating income 1 8 4

Income (loss) before taxes (7) (11) 40

Income tax provision (benefit) (2) (3) 13

Net income (loss) (5)% (8)% 27%

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

The Company operates in two reportable segments: the Modular Vision Systems Division (MVSD) and the Surface Inspection Systems Division

(SISD). MVSD designs, develops, manufactures, and markets modular vision systems that are used to control the manufacturing of discrete

items by locating, identifying, inspecting, and measuring them during the manufacturing process. SISD designs, develops, manufactures, and

markets surface inspection vision systems that are used to inspect surfaces of materials that are processed in a continuous fashion to ensure

there are no flaws or defects in the surfaces.

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 19% to $114,107,000 from $140,729,000 for the year ended December 31,

2001. During 2002, the Company’s results continued to be negatively impacted by a worldwide slowdown in capital spending, primarily by

manufacturers in the semiconductor and electronics industries. Sales to OEM customers, most of whom make capital equipment used by

manufacturers in these industries, decreased $23,993,000, or 39%, from the prior year. Sales to end-user customers also decreased from

the prior year by $2,629,000, or 3%, primarily due to lower demand from customers who make electronic products. Sales to end-user 

customers represented 67% of total revenue in 2002 compared to 56% in 2001. Geographically, revenue decreased from the prior year 

in all of the Company’s major regions, but most significantly in Japan where many of the Company’s OEM customers are located.

Product revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 19% to $96,202,000 from $119,288,000 for the year ended December 31,

2001. The decrease in product revenue was primarily due to a lower volume of machine vision systems sold to customers in the semiconductor

and electronics industries. Service revenue, which is derived from the sale of maintenance and support, education, consulting, and installation

services, decreased 16% to $17,905,000 from $21,441,000 due principally to lower revenue generated by maintenance and support programs

that are sold bundled with product offerings. Service revenue accounted for 16% of total revenue in 2002 compared to 15% in 2001.

MVSD revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 23% to $90,358,000 from $117,074,000 for the year ended December 31,

2001. The decrease in MVSD revenue was primarily due to a lower volume of systems sold to customers in the semiconductor and electronics

industries. SISD revenue totaled $23,749,000 and was slightly higher than the prior year, as the markets served by SISD, such as the paper and

metals industries, were not as severely impacted by the worldwide slowdown in capital spending. SISD revenue represented 21% of total 

revenue in 2002 compared to 17% in 2001.
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Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 65% for 2002 compared to 56% for 2001. In 2001, the Company recorded a $16,615,000

charge in “Cost of product revenue” for excess inventories, inventory purchase commitments, and the impairment of complete technology.

During 2002, the Company recorded benefits to “Cost of product revenue” amounting to $2,684,000 from the sale of previously reserved

inventory and the favorable resolution of inventory purchase commitments, both of which had been reserved in 2001. Excluding these items,

gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 63% for 2002 compared to 68% for 2001. The decrease in gross margin, adjusted for these

charges and credits, was primarily due to the impact of the lower sales volume, as well as a greater percentage of revenue from the sale of

services and surface inspection systems, both of which have lower margins than modular vision systems.

Product gross margin as a percentage of revenue, excluding the unusual items described above, was 68% for 2002 compared to 72% for 2001.

The decrease in product margin was primarily due to unfavorable absorption of manufacturing overhead due to the decreased sales volume, as

well as the shift in product mix to lower-margin surface inspection systems. Service gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 37% for 2002

compared to 43% for 2001. Many of the Company’s products are sold with bundled maintenance and support programs for which the revenue is

recognized over the program period. The declining volume of product sales for the past two years has resulted in lower service revenue derived

from these maintenance and support programs. Although the Company has reduced its cost structure over the past two years to more closely

align expenses to the lower sales volume, the decline in service revenue was much greater than the expense reductions made by the Company.

MVSD gross margin as a percentage of revenue, excluding the unusual items described above, was 67% for 2002 compared to 73% for 2001.

The decrease in MVSD margin was primarily due to the impact of the declining sales volume, as well as lower service margins resulting from

lower maintenance and support revenue. SISD gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 45% for 2002 compared to 42% for 2001. The

increase in SISD margin was due principally to product cost improvements and higher service revenue.

Operating Expenses

Research, development, and engineering expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 15% to $25,630,000 from $30,094,000

for the year ended December 31, 2001. MVSD R,D&E expenses decreased $4,333,000, or 16%, from the prior year primarily due to cost

reduction initiatives that began in 2001 and continued in 2002, including headcount reductions in both 2001 and 2002 and tight control over

discretionary spending. SISD R,D&E expenses were relatively flat with the prior year.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 6% to $58,026,000 from $61,590,000 for 

the year ended December 31, 2001. MVSD S,G&A expenses decreased $4,428,000, or 10%, from the prior year, while SISD S,G&A expenses

increased $705,000, or 11%, from 2001. Corporate expenses that are not allocated to a division were relatively flat with the prior year. The

decrease in MVSD expenses was primarily due to headcount reductions and lower discretionary spending. The increase in SISD expenses

resulted from higher spending in sales and marketing undertaken to increase sales opportunities and grow market share.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company ceased the amortization of goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

Nonoperating Income

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 21% to $8,693,000 from $10,980,000 for the year ended December 31,

2001. This decrease was due to lower average interest rates on the Company’s portfolio of debt securities, as well as a lower average invested

balance as a result of using $26,425,000 in cash to repurchase common stock in 2002. In addition, during 2002, the Company reduced the 

carrying value of its investment in a limited partnership by $680,000, representing losses on the fund’s investments and fund expenses that were

not offset by investment gains.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, based upon the estimated fair value of the Company’s investment in a limited partnership, the Company

determined that it may be unable to recover its full carrying value. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $1,768,000, representing an

other-than-temporary impairment in the carrying value of this investment. In addition, during 2002, the Company recorded losses from the

sale of equity securities totaling $6,184,000. 
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Other income for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased 33% to $463,000 from $689,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Other income consists primarily of rental income, net of related expenses, from leasing the building adjacent to the Company’s corporate

headquarters. A greater portion of the Company’s space available for lease was unoccupied in 2002.

Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate for 2002 and 2001 was a benefit of 27% and 29%, respectively. The benefit reflects the Company’s significant

tax-exempt investment income and future reductions in taxes payable relating to net operating loss carryforwards in various jurisdictions. These

benefits are offset by investments in the Company’s foreign operations that are taxed at rates different from those in the United States and the

impairment charge related to the Company’s investment in a limited partnership, for which no tax benefit was provided.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000

Inventory and Intangible Asset Impairment Charges

Throughout 2001, the Company’s results were negatively impacted by a worldwide slowdown in capital equipment spending by manufacturers in the

semiconductor and electronics industries, as well as a weakened global economy. During the fourth quarter of 2001, a number of factors indicated that

the business slowdown would be both longer and more severe than the Company had previously anticipated, and the Company’s revenue plan for

2002 was lowered accordingly. Most notable among these factors were the continued decline in order rates across a variety of industries and product

lines, as well as information obtained during the fourth quarter of 2001 from the Company’s OEM customers regarding their high inventory positions

and low consumption rates of Cognex products. These factors indicated that the Company’s OEM revenue would be significantly lower than expected

for the next several quarters. Additionally, when a business recovery did occur, these customers would most likely transition from their current invento-

ry of Cognex legacy products to newer Cognex platforms, as they leverage their engineering resources during the business slowdown to develop next-

generation capital equipment. These OEM product transitions, as well as the lower level of demand principally from OEM customers, resulted in a

$16,300,000 charge for excess inventories and purchase commitments in the fourth quarter of 2001 that is included in “Cost of product revenue.”

Also as a result of the significant adverse change in the business climate determined in the fourth quarter of 2001 described above, the Company

evaluated the possible impairment of its intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, “A c c o u n t i n g

for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” These analyses resulted in impairment charges based

upon the difference between the carrying value and the estimated fair value of certain acquisition-related intangible assets. The fair value was

based upon discounting estimated future cash flows for assets grouped at the lowest level for which there were identifiable cash flows at a 

discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. The resulting analyses yielded a $10,932,000 impairment charge related to goodwill arising

primarily from the acquisitions in 2000 of the machine vision businesses of Komatsu Ltd. and Honeywell International Inc. The analyses also

resulted in a $315,000 charge, included in “Cost of product revenue,” related to the impairment of complete technology acquired primarily

from Komatsu Ltd. These charges impacted both the MVSD and SISD segments.

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 44% to $140,729,000 from $250,726,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.

During 2001, the Company’s results were negatively impacted by a worldwide slowdown in capital spending by manufacturers in the semicon-

ductor and electronics industries. Sales to OEM customers, most of whom make capital equipment used by manufacturers in these industries,

decreased $95,439,000, or 61%, from the prior year. Sales to end-user customers also decreased from the prior year by $14,558,000, or

16%, primarily due to lower demand from customers who make electronic products. Although end-user sales decreased in total from 2000,

revenue from customers outside the semiconductor and electronics industries, such as the automotive and paper industries, increased

$10,219,000, or 20%, from the prior year due principally to higher sales of the Company’s In-Sight and SmartView products. Both product

lines were introduced in early 2000 and are targeted to the end-user market. Sales to end-user customers represented 56% of total revenue

in 2001 compared to 37% in 2000. Geographically, revenue decreased from the prior year in all of the Company’s worldwide regions, but

most significantly in Japan where many of the Company’s OEM customers are located.

Product revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 47% to $119,288,000 from $227,079,000 for the year ended December 31,

2000. The decrease in product revenue was primarily due to a lower volume of machine vision systems sold to customers in the semiconductor
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and electronics industries. Service revenue, which is derived from the sale of maintenance and support, education, consulting, and installation 

services, decreased 9% to $21,441,000 from $23,647,000 due principally to lower demand for consulting services. Many of the Company’s prod-

ucts that were sold during 2000 included bundled maintenance and support programs for which a portion of the revenue was recognized in 2001

over the program period. As a result, service revenue did not decrease as dramatically as product revenue and it increased as a percentage of

total revenue. Service revenue accounted for 15% of total revenue in 2001 compared to 9% in 2000.

MVSD revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 49% to $117,074,000 from $231,471,000 for the year ended December 31,

2000. The decrease in MVSD revenue was primarily due to a lower volume of systems sold to customers in the semiconductor and electronics

industries. SISD revenue increased 23% to $23,655,000 from $19,255,000 due principally to a higher volume of SmartView systems sold to 

customers in the paper and metals industries. SISD revenue represented 17% of total revenue in 2001 compared to 8% in 2000.

Gross Margin

Gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 56% for 2001 compared to 75% for 2000. The inventory and intangible asset impairment

charges recorded in “Cost of product revenue” of $16,615,000 accounted for twelve percentage points of the decrease in the gross margin

from 2000. The remaining seven percentage-point decrease was primarily due to the impact of the lower sales volume over a base of fixed

manufacturing costs, as well as a greater percentage of total revenue from the sale of services and surface inspection systems, both of which

have lower margins than modular vision systems.

Product gross margin as a percentage of revenue, excluding the inventory and intangible asset impairment charges, was 72% for 2001 compared

to 78% for 2000. The decrease in product margin was primarily due to unfavorable absorption of manufacturing overhead due to a decreased

volume of sales and the shift in product mix to lower-margin surface inspection systems. Service gross margin as a percentage of revenue was

43% for 2001 compared to 40% for 2000. The increase in service margin was due principally to lower service costs resulting from the cost-

containment measures implemented in 2001. These measures included salary freezes and reductions, the elimination of all company bonuses,

mandatory shutdowns, a reduction in discretionary spending, and a reduction in workforce.

MVSD gross margin as a percentage of revenue, excluding the inventory and intangible asset impairment charges, was 73% for 2001 compared

to 77% for 2000. The decrease in MVSD margin was primarily due to the impact of the lower sales volume over a base of fixed manufacturing

costs. SISD gross margin as a percentage of revenue was 42% for 2001 compared to 44% for 2000. The decrease in SISD margin was due 

principally to higher service costs required to grow the worldwide support organization.

Operating Expenses

Research, development, and engineering expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 10% to $30,094,000 from $33,341,000

for the year ended December 31, 2000. MVSD R,D&E expenses decreased $3,163,000, or 10%, from the prior year and SISD R,D&E expenses

decreased $84,000, or 3%, from 2000. The decrease in MVSD and SISD expenses was primarily due to the cost-containment measures imple-

mented in 2001, as previously discussed.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 1% to $61,590,000 from $61,915,000 for 

the year ended December 31, 2000. MVSD S,G&A expenses decreased $2,500,000, or 5%, from the prior year, while SISD S,G&A expenses

increased $406,000, or 7%, from 2000. Corporate expenses that are not allocated to a division increased $1,769,000, or 21%, from the prior

year. The decrease in MVSD expenses was primarily due to the cost-containment measures implemented in 2001, as previously discussed. 

The increase in SISD expenses was due principally to higher sales and marketing costs required to grow the worldwide sales organization and

market the Company’s SmartView product line, which was introduced in 2000. The increase in unallocated corporate expenses was primarily

due to higher legal costs associated with patent infringement lawsuits initiated by the Company to protect its intellectual property.

Amortization of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2001 totaled $3,108,000 compared to $1,964,000 for the year ended December

31, 2000, representing an increase of $1,144,000. Goodwill amortization at MVSD increased $499,000 due to the full impact in 2001 of the

goodwill arising from the Komatsu Ltd. and Image Industries Ltd. acquisitions in early 2000. Goodwill amortization at SISD increased $645,000

due to the full impact in 2001 of the goodwill arising from the Honeywell International Inc. acquisition in late 2000.

19



Cognex Corporation: Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Nonoperating Income 

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased 16% to $10,980,000 from $9,494,000 for the year ended December 31,

2000. The increase in investment income was due primarily to a higher average invested balance in 2001.

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased 34% to $689,000 from $1,038,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Other income consists primarily of rental income, net of related expenses, from leasing the building adjacent to the Company’s corporate

headquarters. A portion of the Company’s space available for lease was unoccupied in 2001.

Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate for 2001 was a benefit of 29% compared to a provision of 32% in 2000. The benefit reflects the Company’s

significant tax-exempt investment income, future reductions in taxes payable relating to net operating loss carryforwards in various jurisdic-

tions, continued investments in the Company’s foreign operations, and certain of the goodwill impairment charges recognized during the year,

which are not deductible for tax purposes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s cash, cash equivalent, and investment balances totaled $275,985,000, representing 78% of stockholders’

e q u i t y. The Company has established guidelines relative to credit ratings, diversification, and maturities of its investments that maintain liquidity.

The Company’s cash requirements during the year ended December 31, 2002 were met with positive cash flow from operations, as well as 

the proceeds from the maturity and sale of investments and the issuance of common stock under stock option and stock purchase plans. Cash

requirements consisted of operating activities, capital expenditures, and the repurchase of common stock at a cost of $26,425,000. Capital

expenditures in 2002 totaled $2,227,000 and consisted principally of expenditures for computer hardware and software.

On March 31, 2000, the Company acquired selected assets of the machine vision business of Komatsu Ltd. for $11,200,000 in cash, with the

potential for an additional cash payment in 2002 of up to $8,000,000 depending upon certain performance criteria. The measurement period

for the performance criteria ended March 31, 2002, and the Company did not make any additional payments.

On April 20, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Image Industries, Ltd. for $2,706,000. The purchase price included

$1,754,000 in cash payments. During 2002, the Company made a final cash payment of $349,000.

On September 30, 2000, the Company acquired selected assets of the web inspection business of Honeywell International Inc. for $8,400,000

in cash. The Company paid an additional $1,600,000 at the closing that was contingent upon the achievement of certain performance criteria

in 2001. The measurement period for the performance criteria ended December 31, 2001, resulting in a refund of $996,000 from Honeywell.

The remaining $604,000 was expensed during 2002.

On June 30, 2000, Cognex Corporation became a Limited Partner in Venrock Associates III, L.P., a venture capital fund. The Company has commit-

ted to a total investment in the limited partnership of up to $25,000,000, of which $10,375,000 had been contributed as of December 31, 2002,

including $3,250,000 during 2002. The commitment to contribute capital expires on January 1, 2005 and the Company does not have the right to

withdraw from the partnership prior to December 31, 2010.

On December 12, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $100,000,000 of the Company’s common stock.

During 2001, the Company did not repurchase any shares under this program. During 2002, a total of 1,768,452 shares were repurchased at a

cost of $26,425,000. The Company may repurchase additional shares under this program in future periods depending upon a variety of factors,

including the market value of the Company’s common stock and the average return on the Company’s invested balances.

The Company believes that its existing cash, cash equivalents, and investments balances will be sufficient to meet its planned operating, investing,

and financing activities in 2003, which consist primarily of working capital and capital expenditure requirements, as well as any strategic initiatives

in 2003, including its stock repurchase program and potential business or asset acquisitions.
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Cognex Corporation: Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

New Pronouncements

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 146, “Accounting for

Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.

This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and replaces Emerging Issues Ta s k

Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain

Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when

the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 also requires that liabilities recorded in connection with exit plans be initially measured at fair value. The

Company does not expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including

Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which clarifies the disclosure, recognition, and measurement requirements related to certain

guarantees. The provisions related to recognizing a liability at the inception of the guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor’s obligations does

not apply to product warranties or to guarantees accounted for as derivative instruments. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial

statements issued after December 15, 2002 and the recognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to guarantees issued 

or modified after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of Interpretation No. 45 to have a material impact on its

financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This

issue addresses how revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting and how the arrange-

ment consideration should be allocated to the identified separate accounting units. Issue No. 00-21 is effective for fiscal periods beginning after

June 15, 2003. The Company has not yet determined the impact of adopting Issue No. 00-21 on its consolidated financial statements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company faces exposure to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates, as a significant portion of its revenues, expenses, assets,

and liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, primarily the Japanese Yen and Euro Dollar. These exposures may change

over time as business practices evolve. The Company evaluates its foreign currency exposures on an ongoing basis and makes adjustments to its

foreign currency risk management program as circumstances change.

In certain instances, the Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts are

used to reduce the Company’s risk associated with exchange rate movements, as the gains or losses on these contracts are intended to offset the

exchange rate losses or gains on the underlying exposures. The Company does not engage in foreign currency speculation. The success of the

C o m p a n y’s foreign currency risk management program depends upon forecasts of transaction activity denominated in various foreign currencies.

To the extent that these forecasts are overstated or understated during periods of currency volatility, the Company could experience unanticipat-

ed foreign currency gains or losses that could have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations.

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of its net investments in certain of its European sub-

sidiaries. Forward exchange contracts to exchange a total of 51,244,300 Euro Dollars for U.S. Dollars at a weighted-average settlement price of 1.0150

Euro/USD, with terms ranging from two to five years, were outstanding at December 31, 2002. The Company also enters into forward exchange con-

tracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of a portion of its intercompany transactions between the United States parent and its foreign sub-

sidiaries. Forward exchange contracts to exchange 430,000,000 Japanese Yen for U.S. Dollars at a settlement price of 119.20 Yen/USD, contracts to

exchange 230,000,000 Japanese Yen for Euro Dollars at a settlement price of 123.10 Yen/Euro, and contracts to exchange 5,800,000 Euro Dollars for

U.S. Dollars at a settlement price of 1.0316 Euro/USD, all with terms ranging from three to six months, were outstanding at December 31, 2002.

While the contract amounts of derivative instruments provide one measure of the volume of these transactions, they do not represent the

amount of the Company’s exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Because the terms of the forward exchange contract and

underlying exposure are matched generally at inception, movements in foreign currency exchange rates would not expose the Company to 

significant losses in earnings or cash flows.
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Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s investment portfolio includes municipal obligations of state and local government entities. Municipal obligations with original

maturities greater than three months are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and are categorized as available-for-sale. At

December 31, 2002, the amortized cost basis of the Company’s municipal obligations amounted to $209,634,000, with principal amounts total-

ing $205,910,000, maturities that do not exceed three years, and a yield to maturity of 3.34%.

Given the relatively short maturities and investment-grade quality of the Company’s portfolio of municipal obligations at December 31, 2002, a

sharp rise in interest rates should not have a material adverse effect on the fair value of these instruments. As a result, the Company does not

currently hedge these interest rate exposures.

The following table (dollars in thousands) presents hypothetical changes in the fair value of the Company’s portfolio of municipal obligations at

December 31, 2002 arising from selected potential changes in interest rates. Fair value represents the market value of the principal plus accrued

i n t e r e s t .

Valuation of securities given No change Valuation of securities given

Type of security an interest rate decrease in interest rates an interest rate increase

(100 BP) (50 BP) 50 BP 100 BP

Municipal obligations $ 2 2 9 , 1 2 4 $ 2 2 7 , 8 1 9 $ 2 2 6 , 5 1 8 $ 2 2 5 , 2 4 4 $ 2 2 3 , 9 7 2

A 50 basis point (BP) movement in the Federal Funds Rate has occurred in 13 of the last 48 quarters. There has not been a 100 BP movement

in the Federal Funds Rate in any of the last 48 quarters.

Other Market Risks

The Company’s investment portfolio also includes a limited partnership interest in Venrock Associates III, L.P., a venture capital fund with an

investment focus on Information Technology and Health Care and Life Sciences. The Company’s limited partnership interest is accounted for

using the cost method because the Company’s investment is less than 5% of the partnership and the Company has no influence over the part-

nership’s operating and financial policies. The partnership’s performance is monitored by the Company to determine if the carrying value of the

investment has been impaired.

The Company has committed to a total investment in the limited partnership of up to $25,000,000, of which $10,375,000 had been contributed

as of December 31, 2002. The commitment to contribute capital expires on January 1, 2005 and the Company does not have the right to with-

draw from the partnership prior to December 31, 2010.

During 2002, the Company reduced the carrying value of its investment in the limited partnership by $680,000, representing losses on the

fund’s investments and fund expenses that were not offset by investment gains. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2002, based upon the

estimated fair value of this investment, the Company determined that it may be unable to recover its full carrying value. As a result, the

Company recorded a charge of $1,768,000, representing an other-than-temporary impairment in the carrying value of this investment. At

December 31, 2002, the carrying value of this investment had been reduced to $7,927,000.

The Company will continue to monitor the partnership’s performance. The majority of the partnership’s portfolio consists of investments in early

state, private companies characterized by a high degree of risk, volatility, and illiquidity. The task of identifying attractive venture capital invest-

ments and valuing them on an ongoing basis is difficult and involves many uncertainties. Valuations are performed by the General Partner and the

Company relies primarily on this information to make its determination as to whether an other-than-temporary impairment in its interest in the

partnership has occurred. Given the nature of the partnership’s portfolio and the difficulty inherent in valuing these investments, there is a great

deal of uncertainty surrounding the future value of the Company’s interest in the partnership and future impairment charges may be required.
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Cognex Corporation: Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Revenue

Product $ 96,202 $119,288 $227,079

Service 17,905 21,441 23,647

114,107 140,729 250,726

Cost of revenue

Product 28,499 50,170 49,509

Service 11,360 12,175 14,311

39,859 62,345 63,820

Gross margin

Product 67,703 69,118 177,570

Service 6,545 9,266 9,336

74,248 78,384 186,906

Research, development, and engineering expenses 25,630 30,094 33,341

Selling, general, and administrative expenses 58,026 61,590 61,915

Amortization of goodwill – 3,108 1,964

Charge for intangible asset impairment – 10,932 –

Operating income (loss) (9,408) (27,340) 89,686

Investment income 8,693 10,980 9,494

Loss on sale of equity securities and impairment 

of investment in limited partnership (7,952) – –

Other income 463 689 1,038

Income (loss) before taxes (8,204) (15,671) 100,218

Income tax provision (benefit) (2,177) (4,544) 32,070

Net income (loss) $ (6,027) $ (11,127) $ 68,148

Net income (loss) per common and common equivalent share:

Basic $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.58

Diluted $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.49

Weighted-average common and common equivalent shares outstanding:

Basic 43,503 43,639 43,043

Diluted 43,503 43,639 45,698
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Cognex Corporation: Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31, 2002 2001

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  60,864 $ 31,660

Short-term investments 75,769 78,513

Accounts receivable, less reserves of $2,207 and $2,080 in 2002 and 2001, respectively 18,981 17,064

Inventories, net 18,952 23,078

Deferred income taxes 9,969 12,175

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9,256 10,082

Total current assets 193,791 172,572

Long-term investments 139,352 182,542

Property, plant, and equipment, net 27,405 31,213

Deferred income taxes 16,608 12,001

Intangible assets, net 919 1,654

Goodwill, net 3,742 3,268

Other assets 3,686 3,654

$385,503 $406,904 

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 6,910 $ 4,356

Accrued expenses 16,558 18,486

Customer deposits 3,659 2,943

Deferred revenue 3,856 3,075

Total current liabilities 30,983 28,860

Commitments (Notes 4, 9, and 10)

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $.002 par value –

Authorized: 140,000 shares, issued: 46,877 and 46,289 shares 

in 2002 and 2001, respectively 94 93

Additional paid-in capital 184,595 173,675

Treasury stock, at cost, 4,249 and 2,390 shares in 2002 and 2001, respectively (72,311) (43,419)

Retained earnings 248,010 254,037

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,868) (6,342)

Total stockholders’ equity 354,520 378,044

$385,503 $406,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cognex Corporation: Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ (6,027) $  (11,127) $   68,148

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 6,534 6,953 6,991

Amortization of intangible assets 543 4,161 2,883

Amortization of investments 2,447 2,430 2,119

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 3,450 3,745 23,300

Deferred income tax benefit (2,196) (7,843) (533)

Loss on sale of equity securities 6,184 – –

Impairment and net losses on investment in limited partnership 2,448 – –

Charge for excess inventory – 16,300 –

Charge for intangible asset impairment – 11,247 –

Changes in current assets and current liabilities:

Accounts receivable (348) 27,824 (18,811)

Inventories 5,010 (12,893) (17,902)

Accounts payable 395 (5,487) 5,850

Accrued expenses (4,375) (11,565) 5,039

Other current assets and current liabilities 1,979 (3,118) (305)

Other operating activities 402 243 (355)

Net cash provided by operating activities 16,446 20,870 76,424

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of investments (97,723) (139,863) (134,838)

Maturity and sale of investments 139,353 106,310 67,119

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (2,227) (4,455) (7,755)

Long-term deposit – – (1,700)

Cash paid for business and technology acquisitions, net of cash acquired (349) (361) (22,240)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 39,054 (38,369) (99,414)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Issuance of common stock under stock option and stock purchase plans 5,004 4,637 17,920

Repurchase of common stock (26,425) – –

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (21,421) 4,637 17,920

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (4,875) 1,597 (670)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 29,204 (11,265) (5,740)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 31,660 42,925 48,665

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 60,864 $   31,660 $   42,925
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Cognex Corporation – Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands)

Common Stock

Shares Par Value

Balance at December 31, 1999 44,220 $88

Issuance of common stock under stock option and stock purchase plans 1,568 4

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options – –

Common stock received for payment of stock option exercises – –

Acquisition of Image Industries, Ltd. – –

Comprehensive income:

Net income – –

Unrealized loss on investments, net of tax of $978 – –

Gains on foreign intercompany loans, net of losses on forward exchange contracts, net of tax of $53 – –

Foreign currency translation adjustment – –

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2000 45,788 $92

Issuance of common stock under stock option and stock purchase plans 501 1

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options – –

Common stock received for payment of stock option exercises – –

Comprehensive loss:

Net loss – –

Unrealized loss on investments, net of tax of $1,807 – –

Gains on foreign intercompany loans, net of losses on forward exchange contracts, net of tax of $64 – –

Foreign currency translation adjustment – –

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2001 46,289 $93

Issuance of common stock under stock option and stock purchase plans 588 1

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options – –

Repurchase of common stock – –

Common stock received for payment of stock option exercises – –

Comprehensive loss:

Net loss – –

Recognition of accumulated losses on equity securities in current operations, net of tax of $2,506 – –

Losses on foreign intercompany loans, net of gains on forward exchange contracts, net of tax of $21 – –

Foreign currency translation adjustment – –

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2002 4 6 , 8 7 7 $ 9 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Paid-in Treasury Stock Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders’

Capital Shares Cost Earnings Income (Loss) Income (Loss) Equity

$122,522 2,381 $(43,550) $197,016 $ 548 $276,624

17,993 – – – – – 17,997

23,300 – – – – – 23,300

– 2 (77) – – – (77)

– (18) 952 – – – 952

– – – 68,148 – $ 68,148 68,148

– – – – (1,664) (1,664) (1,664)

– – – – 90 90 90

– – – – (1,421) (1,421) (1,421)

$ 65,153

$163,815 2,365 $(42,675) $265,164 $(2,447) $383,949

6,115 – – – – – 6,116

3,745 – – – – – 3,745

– 25 (744) – – – (744)

– – – (11,127) – $(11,127) (11,127)

– – – – (3,076) (3,076) (3,076)

– – – – 109 109 109

– – – – (928) (928) (928)

$(15,022)

$173,675 2,390 $(43,419) $254,037 $(6,342) $378,044

7,470 – – – – – 7,471

3,450 – – – – – 3,450

– 1,768 (26,425) – – – (26,425)

– 91 (2,467) – – – (2,467)

– – – (6,027) – $  (6,027) (6,027)

– – – – 4,269 4,269 4,269

– – – – (35) (35) (35)

– – – – (3,760) (3,760) (3,760)

$ (5,553)

$ 1 8 4 , 5 9 5 4 , 2 4 9 $ ( 7 2 , 3 1 1 ) $ 2 4 8 , 0 1 0 $ ( 5 , 8 6 8 ) $ 3 5 4 , 5 2 0



Cognex Corporation: Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the application of significant accounting policies described below.

Nature of Operations

Cognex Corporation (the Company) designs, develops, manufactures, and markets machine vision systems, or computers that can “see.” 

The Company’s products are used to automate a wide range of manufacturing processes where vision is required.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates

and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cognex Corporation and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly-owned. All

intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain amounts reported in prior years have been reclassified to be consistent

with the current year presentation.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, where the local currency is the functional currency, are translated using

exchange rates in effect at the end of the year for assets and liabilities and average exchange rates during the year for results of operations.

The resulting foreign currency translation adjustment is recorded as other comprehensive income (loss).

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Debt securities purchased with original maturities of three months or less are classified as cash equivalents. Debt securities with original maturities

greater than three months and remaining maturities of one year or less are classified as short-term investments. Debt securities with remaining

maturities greater than one year, as well as equity securities and an investment in a limited partnership, are classified as long-term investments.

Debt securities with original maturities greater than three months are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and are catego-

rized as available-for-sale. It is the Company’s policy to invest in debt securities with maturities that do not exceed three years. Equity securities

are stated at fair value based upon prices quoted on public stock exchanges and are also categorized as available-for-sale. Temporary changes in

unrealized gains or losses on equity securities, net of tax, are recorded as other comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s investment in a

limited partnership is accounted for using the cost method because the Company’s investment is less than 5% of the partnership and the

Company has no influence over the partnership’s operating and financial policies. Fair value of the Company’s limited partnership interest is 

estimated based upon valuations of the partnership’s investments performed by the General Pa r t n e r. The Company evaluates its investments 

for potential impairment when an investment has experienced a decline in fair value. If the decline in fair value is determined to be other- t h a n -

t e m p o r a r y, an impairment charge is recorded in current operations. 

Accounts Receivable

The Company establishes reserves against its accounts receivable for potential credit losses when it determines receivables are at risk for col-

lection based upon the length of time the receivables are outstanding, as well as various other criteria. Receivables are written off against these

reserves in the period they are determined to be uncollectible.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using standard costs, which approximate the first in, first out (FIFO)

method. The Company estimates excess and obsolescence exposures based upon assumptions about future demand, product transitions, and

market conditions and records reserves to reduce inventories to their net realizable value.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Pr o p e r t y, plant, and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Buildings’ useful lives are 39 years, building improvements’ useful lives are 10 years, and the useful lives of computer hardware, computer soft-

ware, and furniture and fixtures range from two to five years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful

lives or the remaining terms of the leases. Maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred; additions and improvements are capitalized.

Upon retirement or disposition, the cost and related accumulated depreciation of the assets disposed of are removed from the accounts, with

any resulting gain or loss included in current operations.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives, which range from two to ten

years. The Company evaluates the possible impairment of long-lived assets, including intangible assets, whenever events or circumstances indicate the

carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. At the occurrence of a certain event or change in circumstances, the Company evaluates the

potential impairment of an asset based upon the estimated future undiscounted cash flows. If an impairment exists, the Company measures the amount

of such impairment based upon the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved.

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost. As of January 1, 2002, the Company ceased the amortization of goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and performed the transitional goodwill impairment test for each

reporting unit. The Company evaluates the possible impairment of goodwill annually each fourth quarter, and whenever events or 

circumstances indicate the carrying value of the goodwill may not be recoverable. The Company evaluates the potential impairment of good-

will by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value is less than the carrying value, 

the Company measures the amount of such impairment by comparing the implied fair value of the goodwill to its carrying value.

Warranty Obligations

The Company warrants its hardware products to be free from defects in material and workmanship for periods ranging from six months 

to two years from the time of sale based upon the product being purchased and the terms of the customer’s contract. Estimated warranty

obligations are evaluated and recorded at the time of sale based upon historical costs to fulfill warranty obligations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from two sources: (1) product sales to both original equipment manufacturer (OEM) customers,

who incorporate the Company’s product into their product for resale, and end-user customers, and (2) service revenue derived principally from

providing maintenance and support, education, consulting, and installation services to both OEM and end-user customers.

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales upon shipment if a signed customer contract or purchase order exists, the fee is fixed 

or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. If a contract or purchase order contains customer-specified acceptance

criteria, then revenue is deferred until the Company can demonstrate that the customer’s criteria have been met. Revenue from maintenance

and support programs is deferred and recognized ratably over the program period. Revenue from education, consulting, and installation 

services is recognized as the related services are performed.

Amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling, as well as reimbursements received from customers for out-of-pocket expenses,

are classified as revenue.

Research and Development

Research and development costs for internally-developed products are expensed when incurred until technological feasibility has been 

established for the product. Thereafter, all software costs are capitalized until the product is available for general release to customers. The

Company determines technological feasibility at the time the product reaches beta in its stage of development. Historically, the time incurred

between beta and general release to customers has been short, and therefore, the costs have been insignificant. As a result, the Company 

has not capitalized software costs associated with internally-developed products. 

The cost of acquired software is capitalized for products determined to have reached technological feasibility; otherwise the cost is expensed.

Capitalized software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the economic life of the product, which is typically three to five years.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method. Under this method, a deferred tax asset or liability is determined based

upon the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates that will be in

effect when these differences reverse. Tax credits are recorded as a reduction in income taxes. Valuation allowances are provided if, based upon

the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number

of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to 

common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period plus potential dilutive common shares. 

All potential dilutive common shares are excluded from the computation of net loss per share because they are antidilutive. Dilutive common

equivalent shares consist of stock options and are calculated using the treasury stock method.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of a company during a period from transactions and other events and circum-

stances, excluding transactions resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Other comprehensive income (loss) consists

of foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale equity securities, and gains and losses on foreign

intercompany loans and their associated forward exchange contracts.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, invest-

ments, and trade receivables. The Company primarily invests in municipal obligations of state and local government entities. The Company has

established guidelines relative to credit ratings, diversification, and maturities of its debt securities that maintain safety and liquidity. The

Company has not experienced any significant realized losses on its debt securities.

A significant portion of the Company’s sales and receivables are from customers who are either in or who serve the semiconductor and 

electronics industries. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for potential credit losses.

The Company has not experienced any significant losses related to the collection of its accounts receivable.

Derivative Instruments

The Company has adopted the accounting and disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133,

“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance

sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current operations or other comprehensive income

(loss), depending upon whether the derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction.

In certain instances, the Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign currency fluctuations. These contracts are

used to reduce the Company’s risk associated with exchange rate movements, as the gains or losses on these contracts are intended to offset

the exchange rate losses or gains on the underlying exposures. The Company does not engage in foreign currency speculation. Hedges of under-

lying exposures are designated and documented at the inception of the hedge and are evaluated for effectiveness monthly. As the terms of the

forward exchange contract and underlying exposure are matched generally at inception, hedging effectiveness is calculated by comparing the

change in fair value of the contract to the change in fair value of the underlying exposure. Based upon year-end exchange rates, the Company

estimates the aggregate contract value of the forward exchange contracts to be representative of the fair value of these instruments.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-

Based Compensation” and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure – an amendment of FAS B

Statement No. 123.” The Company continues to recognize compensation costs using the intrinsic value based method described in Accounting

Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” No compensation costs were recognized in 2002, 2001, and 2000.

Net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share as reported in these consolidated financial statements and on a pro forma basis, as if the fair

value based method described in SFAS No. 123 had been adopted, are as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), as reported $  (6,027) $(11,127) $68,148

Less: Total stock-based compensation costs determined 

under fair value based method, net of tax (17,235) (17,698) (9,557)

Net income (loss), pro forma $(23,262) $(28,825) $58,591

Basic net income (loss) per share, as reported $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.58

Basic net income (loss) per share, pro forma $ (0.53) $ (0.66) $ 1.36

Diluted net income (loss) per share, as reported $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.49

Diluted net income (loss) per share, pro forma $ (0.53) $ (0.66) $ 1.34
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For the purpose of providing pro forma disclosures, the fair values of stock options granted were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-

pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively: a risk-free interest rate 

of 3.5%, 4.5%, and 6.1%; an expected life of 2.9, 2.7, and 3.1 years; an expected volatility of 57%, 62%, and 60%; and no expected dividends.

Note 2: New Pronouncements

In June 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 146, “A c c o u n t i n g

for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December

31, 2002. This statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and replaces Emerging

Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity

(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity

be recognized when the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 also requires that liabilities recorded in connection with exit plans be initially meas-

ured at fair value. The Company does not expect that the adoption of SFAS No. 146 will have a material impact on its financial position or

results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including

Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which clarifies the disclosure, recognition, and measurement requirements related to certain

guarantees. The provisions related to recognizing a liability at the inception of the guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor’s obligations does

not apply to product warranties or to guarantees accounted for as derivative instruments. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial

statements issued after December 15, 2002 and the recognition and measurement provisions apply on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or

modified after December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of Interpretation No. 45 to have a material impact on its financial

position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This

issue addresses how revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting and how the arrange-

ment consideration should be allocated to the identified separate accounting units. Issue No. 00-21 is effective for fiscal periods beginning after

June 15, 2003. The Company has not yet determined the impact of adopting Issue No. 00-21 on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3: Foreign Currency Risk Management

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of its net investments in certain of its European 

subsidiaries. These contracts, which relate primarily to the Euro Dollar, generally have a term of two to five years. Forward exchange contracts

hedging firm commitments qualify for hedge accounting when they are designated as a hedge of the foreign currency exposure and they are effec-

tive in minimizing such exposure. Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts that qualify for hedge accounting are recognized as other com-

prehensive income (loss), along with the associated losses and gains on the net investments. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company

recorded a net exchange rate loss of $35,000 in other comprehensive income (loss) on the net investments and associated forward exchange con-

tracts, compared to net exchange rate gains of $109,000 and $90,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency exposure of a portion of its intercompany transactions

between the United States parent and its foreign subsidiaries. These contracts, which relate primarily to the Japanese Yen and Euro Dollar, 

generally have a term of three to six months. Gains and losses on forward exchange contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recog-

nized in current operations, along with the associated losses and gains on the intercompany transactions. For the year ended December 31, 2002,

the Company recorded a net exchange rate gain of $433,000 in current operations on the intercompany transactions and associated forward

exchange contracts, compared to a net exchange rate loss of $154,000 and a net exchange rate gain of $3,000 for the years ended December 31,

2001 and 2000, respectively.

In addition to the intercompany transactions and associated forward exchange contracts described in the preceding paragraph, the Company

enters into other transactions denominated in foreign currencies for which the exchange rate gains or losses are included in current operations.

The Company recorded a net exchange rate gain of $350,000 in 2002, a net exchange rate loss of $328,000 in 2001, and a net exchange rate

gain of $99,000 in 2000, representing the total net exchange rate gains or losses that are recognized in current operations.
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Note 4: Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 2001

Cash $ 58,424 $ 19,808

Municipal obligations 2,440 11,852

Total cash and cash equivalents 60,864 31,660

Municipal obligations 75,769 78,513

Total short-term investments 75,769 78,513

Municipal obligations 131,425 169,730

Equity securities – 5,687

Investment in limited partnership 7,927 7,125

Total long-term investments 139,352 182,542

$275,985 $292,715

The Company recorded gross realized gains on the sale of municipal obligations totaling $1,112,000 in 2002, $521,000 in 2001, and $149,000 in

2000. The Company recorded gross realized losses on the sale of municipal obligations totaling $25,000 in 2002 and $50,000 in 2001. There were

no gross realized losses from the sale of municipal obligations recorded in 2000. During 2002, the Company sold equity securities with a cost basis

of $12,461,000 and recorded realized losses of $6,184,000 on these transactions. The Company no longer holds any equity investments.

On June 30, 2000, Cognex Corporation became a Limited Partner in Venrock Associates III, L.P., a venture capital fund. A director of the

Company is a Managing General Partner of Venrock Associates. The Company has committed to a total investment in the limited partnership

of up to $25,000,000, of which $10,375,000 and $7,125,000 had been contributed as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The 

commitment to contribute capital expires on January 1, 2005 and the Company does not have the right to withdraw from the partnership

prior to December 31, 2010.

During 2002, the Company reduced the carrying value of its investment in the limited partnership by $680,000, representing losses on the

fund’s investments and fund expenses that were not offset by investment gains. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2002, based upon 

the estimated fair value of this investment, the Company determined that it may be unable to recover its full carrying value. As a result, the

Company recorded a charge of $1,768,000, representing an other-than-temporary impairment in the carrying value of this investment. At

December 31, 2002, the carrying value of this investment had been reduced to $7,927,000.

Note 5: Inventories

Inventories, net, consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 2001

Raw materials $12,530 $16,108

Work-in-process 4,068 4,162

Finished goods 2,354 2,808

$18,952 $23,078
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In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a $16,300,000 charge in “Cost of product revenue” on the Consolidated Statements of

Operations for excess inventories and purchase commitments resulting from an extended slowdown in the semiconductor and electronics

industries, as well as the expected transition to newer Cognex hardware platforms by the Company’s OEM customers. A total of $12,500,000

of this charge represented reserves against existing inventories and was accordingly included in “Inventories” on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet at December 31, 2001. The remaining $3,800,000 of the charge represented commitments to purchase excess components and sys-

tems from various suppliers and accordingly was included in “Accrued expenses” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001.

The following table summarizes the changes in the inventory-related reserves established in the fourth quarter of 2001 (in thousands):

Statement of 

Balance Sheet Operations

Accrued

Inventories Expenses Benefits

Initial charge in the fourth quarter of 2001 $12,500 $ 3,800 $ –

Inventory sold to customers (1,790) – 1,790

Settlement of purchase commitments 1,506 (2,400) 894

Reserve balance at December 31, 2002 $12,216 $ 1,400

Benefits to cost of product revenue recorded in 2002 $2,684

The Company is in the process of negotiating with vendors for the settlement of the remaining purchase commitments, which may result in 

a recovery of a portion of the remaining $1,400,000 accrued at December 31, 2002.

Note 6: Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 2001

Land $   3,051 $ 3,051

Buildings 17,571 17,571

Building improvements 4,079 4,130

Computer hardware and software 31,116 33,868

Furniture and fixtures 3,672 3,509

Leasehold improvements 2,056 1,967

61,545 64,096

Less: accumulated depreciation (34,140) (32,883)

$ 27,405 $ 31,213

Buildings include property held for lease with a cost basis of $4,950,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001 and accumulated depreciation of

$952,000 and $825,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

33



Cognex Corporation: Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 7: Intangible Assets

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1,

2002. In accordance with this statement, the Company reassessed the classification of its goodwill and other intangible assets. This analysis,

which was completed during the first quarter of 2002, resulted in the reclassification of $133,000 of workforce to goodwill. Also in accordance

with this statement, the Company reassessed the useful lives of its amortized intangible assets and determined the lives were appropriate.

Amortized intangible assets consist of the following (in thousands):

Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Value Amortization Value

December 31, 2002

Complete technology $4,708 $3,789 $  919

Noncompete agreements 793 793 –

$5,501 $4,582 $  919

December 31, 2001

Complete technology $ 4,708 $ 3,331 $1,377

Noncompete agreements 852 708 144

Workforce 200 67 133

$ 5,760 $4,106 $1,654

Aggregate amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $543,000, $1,053,000, and $919,000, 

respectively. Estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31, Amount

2003 $409

2004 409

2005 101

2006 –

2007 –

$919

In the fourth quarter of 2001, as a result of a significant adverse change in the business climate, the Company evaluated the possible impairment

of its intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be

Disposed Of.” These analyses resulted in an impairment charge based upon the difference between the carrying value and the estimated fair

value of certain acquisition-related intangible assets. The fair value was based upon discounting estimated future cash flows for assets grouped at

the lowest level for which there were identifiable cash flows at a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. The result was a $315,000

charge, included in “Cost of product revenue” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, related to the impairment of complete technolo-

gy primarily acquired from Komatsu Ltd.

Note 8: Goodwill

In accordance with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on

January 1, 2002, the Company has identified two reporting units with goodwill, the Modular Vision Systems Division (MVSD) and the Surface

Inspection Systems Division (SISD), which are also reportable segments.
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The changes in the carrying value of goodwill are as follows (in thousands):

MVSD SISD Consolidated

Balance at December 31, 2001 $1,355 $1,913 $3,268

Reclassification of workforce 133 – 133

Foreign exchange rate changes – 341 341

Balance at December 31, 2002 $1,488 $2,254 $3,742

As of January 1, 2002, the Company ceased the amortization of goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142. During the first quarter of 2002,

the Company performed the transitional goodwill impairment test for each reporting unit and during the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company

performed the annual goodwill impairment test for each reporting unit. Both analyses resulted in a fair value of each reporting unit that

exceeded its carrying value, and therefore, the goodwill in each reporting unit was determined not to be impaired.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, as a result of a significant adverse change in the business climate, the Company evaluated the possible impairment

of its intangible assets, including goodwill, in accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for 

Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” This analysis resulted in an impairment charge based upon the difference between the carrying value 

and the estimated fair value of certain acquisition-related intangible assets. The fair value was based upon discounting estimated future cash

flows for assets grouped at the lowest level for which there were identifiable cash flows at a discount rate commensurate with the risks

involved. The result was a $10,932,000 impairment charge related to goodwill arising primarily from the acquisitions in 2000 of the machine

vision businesses of Komatsu Ltd. and Honeywell International Inc.

Reported net income (loss) and net income (loss) per basic and diluted share adjusted to exclude amortization of goodwill for the years ended

December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Net Net Income Net Income

Income (Loss) per (Loss) per

(Loss) Basic Share Diluted Share

Year ended December 31, 2001

Reported results $(11,127) $ (.25) $ (.25)

Goodwill amortization, net of tax 2,274 .05 .05

Adjusted results $ (8,853) $ (.20) $ (.20)

Year ended December 31, 2000

Reported results $ 68,148 $1.58 $1.49 

Goodwill amortization, net of tax 1,310 .03 .03 

Adjusted results $ 69,458 $1.61 $1.52

NOTE 9: Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 2001

Salaries, commissions, and payroll taxes $ 3,097 $ 2,564

Professional fees 2,737 2,440

Income taxes 1,738 2,099

Vacation 1,586 1,845

Warranty obligation 1,523 2,007

Purchase commitments 1,400 3,800

Other 4,477 3,731

$16,558 $18,486
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The changes in the warranty obligation are as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 2,007

Provisions for warranties issued 943

Fulfillment of warranty obligations (1,565)

Foreign exchange rate changes 138

Balance at December 31, 2002 $ 1,523

Note 10: Leases

The Company conducts certain of its operations in leased facilities. These lease agreements expire at various dates through 2014 and are

accounted for as operating leases. Annual rental expense totaled $4,536,000 in 2002, $4,673,000 in 2001, and $3,717,000 in 2000. Future 

minimum rental payments under these agreements are as follows at December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

Year ended December 31, Amount

2003 $3,759

2004 2,255

2005 1,560

2006 216

2007 191

Thereafter 462

$8,443

The Company owns an 83,000 square-foot office building adjacent to its corporate headquarters. The building is currently occupied with 

tenants who have lease agreements that expire at various dates through 2004. Annual rental income totaled $1,224,000 in 2002, $1,426,000 

in 2001, and $1,755,000 in 2000. Rental income and related expenses are included in “Other income” on the Consolidated Statements of

Operations. Future minimum rental receipts under non-cancelable lease agreements are $1,137,000 in 2003 and $218,000 in 2004.

Note 11: Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock

The Company has 400,000 shares of authorized but unissued $.01 par value preferred stock.

Stock Repurchase Programs

On December 12, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $100,000,000 of the Company’s common stock.

During 2001, the Company did not repurchase any shares under this program. During 2002, a total of 1,768,452 shares were repurchased at a

cost of $26,425,000.

Stock Option Plans

At December 31, 2002, the Company had 8,789,699 shares available for grant under the following stock option plans: the 1998 Director Plan,

74,000; the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, 815,699; the 2001 Interim General Stock Incentive Plan, 400,000; and the 2001 General Stock Option

Plan, 7,500,000.

The 2001 General Stock Option Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on December 11, 2001 without stockholder approval. This plan

provides for the granting of nonqualified stock options to any employee who is actively employed by the Company and is not an officer or

director of the Company. The maximum number of shares of common stock available for grant under the plan is 7,500,000 shares. All option

grants must have an exercise price per share that is no less than the fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the grant

date and must have a term that is no longer than fifteen years from the grant date. No stock options have been issued under the 2001 General

Stock Option Plan.
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The 2001 Interim General Stock Incentive Plan was adopted by the Board of Directors on July 17, 2001 without stockholder approval. This 

plan provides for the granting of nonqualified stock options to any employee who is actively employed by the Company and is not an officer 

or director of the Company. The maximum number of shares of common stock available for grant under the plan is 400,000 shares. All option

grants must have an exercise price per share that is no less than the fair market value per share of the Company’s common stock on the grant

date and must have a term that is no longer than fifteen years from the grant date. No stock options have been issued under the 2001 Interim

General Stock Incentive Plan.

On April 21, 1998, the stockholders approved the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, under which the Company may initially grant stock options and

stock awards to purchase up to 1,700,000 shares of common stock. Effective January 1, 1999 and each January 1st thereafter during the term

of the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, the number of shares of common stock available for grants of stock options and stock awards shall be

increased automatically to an amount equal to 4.5% of the total number of issued shares of common stock, including shares held in treasury,

as of the close of business on December 31st of the preceding year.

On November 27, 2000, employees forfeited 652,280 stock options. The Company committed to grant those employees the same number 

of options approximately seven months later having exercise prices equal to the then fair market value with similar terms and conditions. On

June 8, 2001, the Company granted 583,580 options at the then fair market value to those same employees. The number of options granted

on June 8, 2001 was less than the original amount forfeited due to employee terminations.

Stock options generally vest over four years and generally expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s stock option plans at December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, and changes during

the years then ended (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at 

beginning of year 9,529 $22.31 8,014 $21.04 8,047 $16.09

Granted at fair market value 2,211 21.38 2,630 25.28 2,985 35.65

Granted above fair market value – – – – 60 59.10

Exercised (550) 12.56 (467) 10.10 (1,622) 10.78

Forfeited (809) 25.26 (648) 27.54 (1,456) 36.58

Outstanding at end of year 10,381 22.40 9,529 22.31 8,014 21.04

Options exercisable at year-end 4,156 19.01 2,842 15.93 1,913 13.05

Weighted-average grant-date 

fair value of options granted 

during the year at fair 

market value $ 8.39 $10.34 $ 15.60

Weighted-average grant-date 

fair value of options granted 

during the year above 

fair market value – – $ 20.39
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-

Average

Remaining Weighted- Weighted-

Range of Number Contractual Average Number Average

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (in years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price

$ 1.00 – 15.72 2,099 5.3 $ 11.12 1,590 $ 10.28

15.88 – 18.13 1,850 7.8 17.20 797 16.52

18.19 – 25.60 3,577 8.7 22.71 818 23.61

25.70 – 30.81 1,930 8.3 28.93 678 28.70

30.86 – 44.44 435 7.4 35.86 210 36.09

45.41 – 59.69 490 11.3 50.38 63 49.78

10,381 7.9 22.40 4,156 19.01

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), employees who have completed six months of continuous employment with 

the Company may purchase common stock semi-annually at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the stock at the beginning or end of

the six-month payment period through accumulation of payroll deductions. Employees are required to hold common stock purchased under 

the ESPP for a period of one year from the date of purchase. The maximum number of shares of common stock available for issuance under 

the ESPP is 250,000 shares. Effective January 1, 2001 and each January 1st thereafter during the term of the ESPP, 250,000 shares of common

stock will always be available for issuance. Shares purchased under the ESPP totaled 38,105 in 2002, 34,004 in 2001, and 22,638 in 2000. The

weighted-average fair value of shares purchased under the ESPP was $5.73 in 2002, $7.73 in 2001, and $17.22 in 2000.

For the purpose of providing pro forma disclosures, the fair values of shares purchased were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for purchases in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively: a weighted-average risk-free

interest rate of 1.5%, 2.9%, and 5.9%; an expected life of six months; an expected volatility of 57%, 62%, and 60%; and no expected dividends.

Note 12: Employee Savings Plan

Under the Company’s Employee Savings Plan, a defined contribution plan, employees who have attained age 21 may contribute up to 25% of

their salary on a pre-tax basis subject to the annual dollar limitations established by the Internal Revenue Service. The Company contributes fifty

cents for each dollar an employee contributes, with a maximum contribution of 3% of an employee’s pre-tax salary. Company contributions

vest 20%, 40%, 60%, and 100% after two, three, four, and five years of continuous employment with the Company, respectively. Company

contributions totaled $869,000 in 2002, $1,004,000 in 2001, and $844,000 in 2000. Cognex stock is not an investment alternative, nor are

Company contributions made in the form of Cognex stock.
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Note 13: Income Taxes

Domestic income before taxes was $3,422,000 and $3,068,000 and foreign loss before taxes was $11,626,000 and $18,739,000 for the years

ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Foreign income (loss) before taxes was not significant for the year ended December 31, 2000.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Current:

Federal $(1,930) $ 3,742 $29,335

State 48 (319) 1,467

Foreign 1,040 536 3,793

(842) 3,959 34,595

Deferred:

Federal 524 (7,093) (2,301)

State (51) 822 1,279

Foreign (1,808) (2,232) (1,503)

(1,335) (8,503) (2,525)

$(2,177) $(4,544) $32,070

A reconciliation of the United States federal statutory corporate tax to the Company’s effective tax is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Income tax provision (benefit) at federal statutory rate $(2,871) $(5,485) $35,076

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 67 38 1,782

Tax-exempt investment income (2,992) (3,656) (3,241)

Federal export incentive (385) – (4,447)

Foreign tax rate differential 2,934 1,933 2,088

Goodwill amortization and impairment charges 846 2,382 161

Other 224 244 651

Provision (benefit) for income taxes $(2,177) $(4,544) $32,070
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Deferred tax assets consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 2001

Current deferred tax assets:

Inventory and revenue related $ 7,929 $ 9,453

Bonus, commission, and other compensation 334 429

Other 1,706 2,293

Total net current deferred tax asset $ 9,969 $12,175

Noncurrent deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Federal and state tax credit carryforwards $ 4,473 $ 5,389

Foreign net operating loss carryforwards 4,523 3,420

Acquired complete technology and other intangibles 3,528 3,645

Federal and state capital loss carryforwards 1,979 –

Acquired in-process technology 1,135 1,250

Depreciation 435 477

Unrealized investment gains (losses) 95 (2,362)

Other 440 182

Total net noncurrent deferred tax asset $16,608 $12,001

At December 31, 2002, the Company had federal research and experimentation tax credit carryforwards of approximately $2,251,000, which

may be available to offset future federal income tax liabilities and will expire in 2021. The Company also had approximately $989,000 of alterna-

tive minimum tax credits and approximately $400,000 of foreign tax credits, which may be available to offset future regular income tax liabilities.

The alternative minimum tax credits have an unlimited life and the foreign tax credits will expire in 2007. In addition, the Company had approxi-

mately $833,000 of state research and experimentation tax credit and investment tax credit carryforwards, which will begin to expire in 2005.

At December 31, 2002, the Company’s foreign subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $29,700,000, of which

$2,700,000, representing a tax benefit of $1,149,000, will expire in 2006. The remaining balance of $27,000,000, representing a tax benefit 

of $3,374,000, has an unlimited life.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company had a federal net operating loss of approximately $10,300,000, which will be carried

back against $3,605,000 of taxes previously paid. This amount is included in “Accrued expenses” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at

December 31, 2002.

The Company did not establish valuation allowances against its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company has evalu-

ated the realizability of these deferred tax assets and has determined that it is more likely than not that these assets will be realized. In reach-

ing this conclusion, the Company has evaluated certain relevant criteria including the Company’s historical profitability, current projections of

future profitability, and the lives of tax credits, net operating and capital losses, and other carryforwards. Should the Company fail to generate

sufficient pre-tax profits in future periods, the Company may be required to establish valuation allowances against these deferred tax assets,

resulting in a charge to income in the period of determination.
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Note 14: Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share is calculated as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss) $ (6,027) $(11,127) $68,148

Basic:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 43,503 43,639 43,043

Net income (loss) per common share $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.58

Diluted:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 43,503 43,639 43,043

Effect of dilutive stock options – – 2,655

Weighted-average common and common equivalent shares outstanding 43,503 43,639 45,698

Net income (loss) per common and common equivalent share $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.49

Stock options to purchase 6,347,233, 3,066,622, and 877,342 shares of common stock were outstanding during the years ended December 31,

2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net income (loss) per share because the options’ exercise

prices were greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock during those years. Additionally, stock options to purchase

939,961 and 1,615,524 shares of common stock were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share for the years ended 

December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, because they were antidilutive. Although these stock options were antidilutive in 2002, 2001, 

and 2000, they may be dilutive in future years’ calculations.

Note 15: Segment and Geographic Information

The Company has two reportable segments: the Modular Vision Systems Division (MVSD) and the Surface Inspections Systems Division

(SISD). MVSD designs, develops, manufactures, and markets modular vision systems that are used to control the manufacturing of discrete

items by locating, identifying, inspecting, and measuring them during the manufacturing process. SISD designs, develops, manufactures, and

markets surface inspection vision systems that are used to inspect surfaces of materials that are processed in a continuous fashion to ensure

there are no flaws or defects in the surfaces. Segments are determined based upon the way that management organizes its business for mak-

ing operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company evaluates segment performance based upon income or loss from operations,

excluding unusual items.
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The following table summarizes information about the Company’s segments (in thousands):

Reconciling

MVSD SISD Items Consolidated

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Product revenue $ 78,270 $17,932 – $ 96,202

Service revenue 12,088 5,817 – 17,905

Depreciation and amortization 6,487 388 $ 202 7,077

Operating income (loss) (3,181) 1,369 (7,596) (9,408)

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Product revenue $100,188 $ 19,100 – $119,288

Service revenue 16,886 4,555 – 21,441

Depreciation and amortization 9,247 1,644 $ 223 11,114

Inventory and intangible asset impairment charges – – 27,547 27,547

Operating income (loss) 10,189 138 (37,667) (27,340)

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Product revenue $212,610 $ 14,469 – $227,079

Service revenue 18,861 4,786 – 23,647

Depreciation and amortization 8,243 1,324 $ 307 9,874

Operating income (loss) 98,352 (315) (8,351) 89,686

Reconciling items consist of inventory and intangible asset impairment charges, $21,892,000 of which related to the MVSD segment and

$5,655,000 of which related to the SISD segment in 2001, as well as the benefit from the sale of previously reserved inventory and the favorable

resolution of inventory purchase commitments, which relate to the MVSD segment in 2002. These items are not included in the segment’s

operating income (loss) for the purpose of making operating decisions and assessing performance. Reconciling items also consist of unallocated

corporate expenses, which primarily include corporate headquarters costs and patent infringement litigation. Asset information by segment is

not produced internally, and therefore is not presented.

One customer accounted for $25,805,000, or 10%, of revenue in 2000. No customer accounted for greater than 10% of revenue in 2002 

or 2001.

The following table summarizes information about geographic areas (in thousands):

United States Japan Ireland Other Consolidated

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Product revenue $ 44,292 $14,355 $37,555 – $ 96,202

Service revenue 13,263 2,119 2,523 – 17,905

Long-lived assets 28,891 3,077 2,744 $1,040 35,752

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Product revenue $ 75,124 $ 26,680 $ 17,484 – $119,288

Service revenue 17,287 2,607 1,547 – 21,441

Long-lived assets 32,733 3,830 2,031 $ 1,195 39,789

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Product revenue $187,628 $ 39,451 – – $227,079

Service revenue 20,637 3,010 – – 23,647

Long-lived assets 43,754 4,513 $ 10,463 $ 1,382 60,112

Revenue is presented geographically based upon the country in which the sale is recorded. The “Other” column represents all long-lived

assets in other countries, none of which were individually significant.
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Note 16: Acquisitions

Acquisition of Komatsu Ltd. Machine Vision Business

On March 31, 2000, the Company acquired selected assets of the machine vision business of Komatsu Ltd. for $11,200,000 in cash, with the

potential for an additional cash payment in 2002 of up to $8,000,000 depending upon certain performance criteria. The measurement period

for the performance criteria ended March 31, 2002, and the Company did not make any additional payments.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, as a result of a significant adverse change in the business climate, the Company evaluated the possible impairment

of its intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of 

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” These analyses resulted in impairment charges based upon the difference

between the carrying value and the estimated fair value of the intangible assets associated with the acquisition of the machine vision business of

Komatsu Ltd. The fair value was based upon discounting estimated future cash flows for assets grouped at the lowest level for which there were

identifiable cash flows at a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. The resulting analyses yielded a $5,550,000 impairment charge,

of which $5,227,000 was allocated to the carrying value of goodwill and $50,000 was allocated to the carrying value of workforce, which

reduced the carrying values of these assets to zero. The remaining $273,000 reduced the carrying value of complete technology.

Acquisition of Image Industries, Ltd.

On April 20, 2000, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Image Industries Ltd., a privately-held manufacturer of low-cost

machine vision systems located in the United Kingdom. The purchase price of $2,706,000 included $876,000 in cash at closing, $878,000 in

cash to be paid through 2002, and 17,619 shares of Cognex common stock, issued from treasury, with a fair value of $952,000. During 2002,

the Company made a final cash payment of $349,000.

Acquisition of Honeywell International Inc. Web Inspection Business

On September 30, 2000, the Company acquired selected assets of the web inspection business of Honeywell International Inc. for $8,400,000

in cash. The Company paid an additional $1,600,000 at the closing that was contingent upon the achievement of certain performance criteria

in 2001. The measurement period for the performance criteria ended December 31, 2001, resulting in a refund of $996,000 from Honeywell.

The remaining $604,000 was expensed during 2002.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, as a result of a significant adverse change in the business climate, the Company evaluated the possible impairment

of its intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of 

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” These analyses resulted in impairment charges based upon the difference

between the carrying value and the estimated fair value of the intangible assets associated with the acquisition of the web inspection business 

of Honeywell. The fair value was based upon discounting estimated future cash flows for assets grouped at the lowest level for which there

were identifiable cash flows at a discount rate commensurate with the risks involved. The resulting analyses yielded a $5,512,000 impairment

charge that reduced the carrying value of goodwill.

Note 17: Supplemental Statement of Cash Flows Disclosure

Cash paid for income taxes totaled $1,180,000 in 2002, $6,741,000 in 2001, and $8,386,000 in 2000.

Common stock received as payment for stock option exercises totaled $2,467,000 in 2002, $744,000 in 2001, and $77,000 in 2000.

In 2000, the Company issued 17,619 shares of Cognex treasury stock, with a fair value of $952,000, in connection with the acquisition 

of Image Industries, Ltd.

The Company retired certain fully-depreciated property, plant, and equipment totaling $5,407,000 in 2002, $282,000 in 2001, and 

$4,664,000 in 2000.
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cognex Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders’ equity

and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cognex Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2002

and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of

the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our

audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 

our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for

goodwill and other intangible assets.

Boston, Massachusetts

January 24, 2003
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Cognex Corporation: Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue $114,107 $140,729 $250,726 $152,125 $121,844

Cost of revenue 39,859 62,345 63,820 45,221 37,296

Gross margin 74,248 78,384 186,906 106,904 84,548

Research, development, and engineering expenses 25,630 30,094 33,341 27,536 24,535

Selling, general, and administrative expenses 58,026 61,590 61,915 43,523 37,973

Amortization of goodwill – 3,108 1,964 265 127

Charge for acquired in-process technology – – – – 2,100

Charge for intangible asset impairment – 10,932 – – –

Operating income (loss) (9,408) (27,340) 89,686 35,580 19,813

Nonoperating income 1,204 11,669 10,532 7,300 7,489

Income (loss) before taxes (8,204) (15,671) 100,218 42,880 27,302

Income tax provision (benefit) (2,177) (4,544) 32,070 12,435 7,099

Net income (loss) $ (6,027) $ (11,127) $ 68,148 $ 30,445 $ 20,203

Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.58 $ 0.74 $ 0.49

Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.14) $ (0.25) $ 1.49 $ 0.69 $ 0.47

Basic weighted-average 

common shares outstanding 43,503 43,639 43,043 40,932 40,978

Diluted weighted-average 

common shares outstanding 43,503 43,639 45,698 43,986 43,203

December 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $162,808 $143,712 $167,913 $126,298 $101,971

Total assets 385,503 406,904 436,141 314,822 247,928

Long-term debt – – – – –

Stockholders’ equity 354,520 378,044 383,949 276,624 222,875
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Cognex Corporation: Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2002 Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 29 December 31

Revenue $21,780 $26,671 $31,827 $33,829

Gross margin 13,215 17,443 20,762 22,828

Operating income (loss) (6,162) (3,288) (1,394) 1,436

Net income (loss) (2,520) (4,712) 781 424

Basic net income (loss) per share (0.06) (0.11) 0.02 0.01

Diluted net income (loss) per share (0.06) (0.11) 0.02 0.01

Common stock prices:

High 30.00 29.68 21.10 23.30

Low 21.20 18.55 13.75 13.01

2001 Quarter Ended April 1 July 1 September 30 December 31

Revenue $44,206 $37,379 $33,974 $ 25,170

Gross margin 31,414 25,128 22,904 (1,062)

Operating income (loss) 4,017 254 380 (31,991)

Net income (loss) 4,761 2,155 2,292 (20,335)

Basic net income (loss) per share 0.11 0.05 0.05 (0.46)

Diluted net income (loss) per share 0.11 0.05 0.05 (0.46) 

Common stock prices:

High 28.19 34.40 34.20 27.14

Low 18.81 21.31 19.60 17.60
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machine vision products, and our worldwide sales and support team.

There is, however, one thing that truly separates Cognex from the rest of

the machine vision pack. To find out what it is, fold page as shown.

A B

A B

FOLD PAGE OVER LIKE THIS!

FOLD PAGE OVER LEFT FOLD BACK SO THAT “A” MEETS “B”

?W H AT DOES IT 

TAKE TO GET TO THE

TOP OF THE MAC H I N E

VISION INDUSTRY ?



14

Cognex Corporation One Vision Drive  Natick, MA 01760  www.cognex.com 


